## **PARENT HANDBOOK**



## 2016-2017

Para Los Niños Charter Middle School

835 Stanford Avenue Los Angeles, CA 90021 Office Telephone (213) 896-2640 FAX: (213) 896-2660

www.paralosninoscms.org

Contents	
Para Los Niños Overview and Services	3
Para Los Niños Charter Middle School	4
Governance	7
General School Information	8
Attendance	8
Truancy Process	
Student Attendance Review Teams and Board	10
Arrival at School	11
Dismissal from School	11
Permission to Leave School During the Day	11
Contacting a Student during the School Day	11
After-School Program	12
Valuables:	
PLN Charter Middle School Uniforms	
Physical Education (PE) Uniforms	
Visiting Campus:	
Off-Campus Learning:	15
Food Service:	
Calendar	
Admissions	
Foster and Homeless Youth	
Code of Conduct	
Discipline	
Students with Disabilities and Medical Conditions	
Family Education Rights and Privacy Act	
Parent Involvement	
Policy Against Bullying, Hazing, and Harassment	
Uniform Complaint Procedures	
Health and Safety	
Medications	
Overall Welfare	
Emergency Preparedness	
Staff Poster	35

### Para Los Niños Overview and Services

Since 1980, Para Los Niños has worked to support children in their journey towards a more successful future. Para Los Niños provides comprehensive and integrated educational and family services that support the whole child from infancy through successive stages of school and life. Para Los Niños Charter Middle School provides sixth to eighth grade and is an integral part of the educational services provided by Para Los Niños. Additionally, we have Early Education Centers where we provide quality, research-based early childhood education that increases school readiness and prepared children for success in kindergarten and beyond. We also operate a Primary Center (TK-1) and Charter Elementary School (TK-5) which provides high quality, project based curriculum and an after-school program.

We understand that in order for our students to be successful academically, their physical and socio-emotional needs must be supported both at school and at home. With this in mind, Para Los Niños offers students and their families a wide array of student and family support services through our internal services and community partnerships. If, at any time, you want to become further involved in your student's education, the school community at large, have a concern about your child's behavior or a family crisis or emergency, please don't hesitate to reach out to the school's Family Advocate for more information on one or more of the following services:

#### **Clinical Services:**

PLN provides ongoing mentoring, problem solving, and socio-emotional support for children struggling through transitions, difficulty managing emotions, feelings of depression or anxiety and victims of community violence. Our approach is evidence and strength-based, family and child centered and available for those with Medi-Cal insurance and those who are uninsured. PLN has therapists at each school site who are on call and available to assist our students and staff.

#### **Family Support Services:**

PLN offers assistance to families in navigating the County's complex support systems, community resources for children, Nurturing Parenting and child development education, financial education, and support in times of crises.

#### Youth Workforce Services:

For families with older children, PLN prepares youth ages 14 to 21 for success in post-secondary education and workforce through paid and unpaid work experience, career counseling, job placement, mentoring, case management and leadership development.

### Parent and Community Engagement:

PLN provides guidance and leadership training to parents who would like to take on deeper roles within the school community through serving on our School Site Councils, English Language Advisory Committee and Local Control Accountability Plan. In addition to these groups there are opportunities to work in our Parent Centers, volunteer time in our classrooms and library, assist in the office, and recruit community supports.

### Para Los Niños Charter Middle School

The Para Los Niños Charter Middle School, serving the children of working families in downtown Los Angeles, strives to cultivate and celebrate the potential within each child and equip students with the skills, knowledge and confidence necessary to pursue excellence and succeed in a multi-cultural world. The School provides a nurturing, safe environment that inspires critical thinking, imagination, self-reliance and respect for others.

#### Our values:

- Children come first.
- The Family is essential.
- Excellence in all areas.
- Respecting and embracing diversity.
- Empowering communities.
- Responsive, compassionate, and inspiring to those we serve.
- Highest ethical standards.
- Transparency and accountability.
- Teamwork and collaborative partnerships.

#### **Our Guiding Principles:**

- Every child and family has the right to reach high standards of achievement.
- Every child and family has the right to be respected.
- Every child and family has the right to be responded to as individuals with different academic, socio-emotional, physical, psychological, and cultural needs.
- Every child and family has the right to safe environments that facilitate healthy development and learning.
- Every child and family deserves opportunities to engage with and impact the local community and global society.
- Every child and family deserves access to cultural best practices.

#### Overview:

Para Los Niños Charter Middle School is founded on the belief that every child has the potential to reach high standards of achievement, to ask good questions and to think critically. Because we believe that a comprehensive educational program is critical to the ability of our students to pursue their dreams and achieve future success, Para Los Niños opened its Middle School in September of 2008 with an entering class of 55 6th graders. At full enrollment the PLN Middle School serves 364 students – 124 in the 6th grade and 120 students in each grade level 7th and 8th.

In a nurturing and safe environment that inspires critical thinking, imagination, self-reliance and respect for others, students at PLN Middle School engage with their environment, participate meaningfully in community life, and prepare for their futures as lifelong learners.

#### What it means to be a Charter School:

A charter school is a public school designed to meet a community's need for alternative educational programs. As individuals, all students come to school with differing needs, passions, and capacities. Families also come to school with a variety of needs and expectations. Local communities differ in the role they expect a school to play in the lives of their members. With this in mind, the charter school movement seeks to provide localized efforts to meet the needs of a variety of students, families, and communities through specifically designed educational programs.

As a publically funded school, charter schools are held accountable for ensuring that students achieve the same standard of academic achievement as their peers in public, non-charter schools. Charter school students participate in all state and federal testing and receive the same per pupil funding as public, non-charter schools. Any student residing in the state of California is eligible to attend PLN Middle School. Charter schools do not charge students tuition and may not discriminate against any student on the basis of actual or perceived disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity,

religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate crimes in the California Penal Code.

A charter school has flexibility in the design of its educational program. The curriculum, teaching style and even the school days, hours and calendar can be tailored to the needs of the student population. The PLN Middle School staff and administration engages in an ongoing and rigorous process of evaluating the needs of our community and matching those needs to a program based on the appropriate best practices in education.

#### **Program Components:**

In much the same way that we expect our students to learn and grow, we understand that, as a school we must also be active participants in an ongoing process of self-reflection and program evolution. Our ultimate mission and core values are firmly rooted in our parent organization. Para Los Niños. Sensitive to the value of student's primary language in the learning process.

PLN Charter Schools place a high value on fostering a quality and productive educational experience for students and their families. This cannot be accomplished unless each individual student is understood in terms of his or her goals, strengths, needs, and the context from which he or she comes. We know that to truly know our students and families, we must spend meaningful time with them. Students and families will work closely with their teachers to set goals and develop strategies for success.

We know that learning occurs when a student actively participates in a process connecting what that student already understands to new information. Students need opportunities to have firsthand experiences that build language and conceptual understanding. Students need guided opportunities to reflect on and process new information; this is how students develop a deep understanding of concepts. Our students will develop the core academic areas of reading, writing and mathematics and will apply these to further their understanding and demonstrate their learning. Our teachers receive training in guiding students to develop critical thinking skills that are demonstrated through oral and written communication as well as multiple forms of representation. Walking into a PLN Charter Schools classroom, a visitor would see active students asking questions, participating in discourse with the guidance of their teacher and using resources to further their learning; you would see a very focused, rigorous and engaging learning environment. The teachers work to create environments that deepen opportunities for students to wonder, ask questions, hypothesize and use resources to find answers. Classroom environments continuously change with added first hand resources reflecting the depth of student long-term investigations.

#### Assessment:

The PLN Middle School uses a range of assessment practices that emphasize the concepts and skills we believe are truly critical to student academic and personal success. We place a high priority on methods of assessment that measure a student's ability to think critically and transfer knowledge. We employ assessment practices that encourage interaction, self-reflection, and goal setting toward growth based on data.

Classroom Based Assessment: Teachers at the PLN Middle School create and adapt assessment methods appropriate for measuring student achievement toward clearly identified goals and objectives. Teachers are responsible for documenting student growth and progress regularly, consistently, and using evidence. All teachers are expected to collect data on student progress before, during, and after the introduction of new concepts. These assessments may take the form of individual conferences, tests, quizzes, performance based evaluation using rubrics, and classroom teacher observations.

Interactive Assessment: Students live and learn surrounded by people and need to learn to interact with these people in order to be successful. PLN Middle School students are expected to provide regular evidence of their own progress toward clearly identified goals and objectives in a variety of settings. Students **conference** regularly with their classroom teacher and parents in order to set goals, show their learning, and problem solve any obstacles to their academic development.

Formal Documentation: Four times annually, parents and students receive a **written documentation** of student progress. Included in this report are clearly identified goals and objectives in the content areas and in the area of personal growth. On these reports, teachers summarize student progress toward these goals and objectives and provide specific evidence for their statements.

Program Assessment: PLN Middle School participates annually, as is required by law, in all **state and federally mandated testing** programs (e.g., the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress). Data collected from these assessments help us to determine our success in helping our students achieve proficiency of the California Content Standards. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a parent's or guardian's written request to School officials to excuse his or her child from any or all parts of the state assessments shall be granted.

The PLN Middle School administers an annual end-of-the-year parent satisfaction **survey** as part of our ongoing efforts to ensure that we are best serving our community. Additionally, PLN Middle School is held accountable for the highest levels of student, staff, and program achievement by the Para Los Niños Board of Directors and the LAUSD Board of Education. Both conduct regular **program reviews**.

## Governance

Para Los Niños Middle School is governed by the Para Los Niños Board of Directors. This active board supports and, ultimately, holds accountable our school as we strive to provide the highest quality educational experience for our students and families. All PLN Board meetings comply with Brown Act regulations including having time allotted for public comment.

# Board of Directors 2016-2017

Marjorie Ehrich Lewis, Chair, Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher

Tomas J. Masenga, Sheppard Mullin Ritcher and Hampton, LLP

Peter Lopez, Granite Investment Partners, LLC

Rick J. Caruso, Caruso Affiliated (Emeritus)

Cathy Hession, Vice Chair, The Carol and James Collins Foundation

Pedro Martí, Wells Fargo

Andrei Muresianu, Capital World Investors

Mark Pan, Cotton On USA, Inc.

Walter F. Parkes, Parkes & MacDonald Productions

Ronnie Roy, DME Law, LLP

Glenn A. Sonnenberg, Latitude Management Real Estate Investors, Inc.

Gene Straub, Secretary, Granada Hills Charter High School

Margarita Corrales, Policy Committee Chair for Head Start (ex-officio)

Cindy Wine Baum, Woman Helping Youth

The PLN Board of Directors are advised on school issues by an education advisory board chair, the school's principal, the superintendent of schools and the President and CEO of Para Los Niños.

### **General School Information**

Hours:

Monday, Wednesday, and Friday 8:00 am - 3:00 pm

Tuesday and Thursday 8:00 am - 2:00 pm

(Professional Development Days)

Minimum Days 8:00am – 1:00 pm

(Parents will be notified when minimum days will take place or if a change takes place)

### **Attendance**

Regular and punctual attendance is important for student achievement. Absences and late arrivals should be limited to verified reasons such as those listed below. When an absence or tardy occurs, please send a note with your child upon their return and include any documentation you may have of medical, dental, or court appointments that may deem the absence or tardy excused. A copy of the complete PLN Attendance Policy is available upon request.

- Excused absences absences shall be excused if they are due to the following reasons:
  - Student illness
  - Quarantine under the direction of a county or city health officer
  - Medical/dental appointment (we recommend that appointments be made after school or on the weekends)
  - Attending the funeral of an immediate family member (e.g., mother, father, grandmother, grandfather, brother, sister, or any relative living in the immediate household of the student one day within the state, three days outside the state)
  - Justifiable personal reasons when the pupil's absence has been requested in writing by the parent and approved by the principal such as:
    - Mental Health Day Treatment
    - Appearance in court
    - Observance of a religious holiday or ceremony
    - Attendance at a religious retreat (shall not exceed 4 hours per semester)
    - Work in the entertainment industry for a period of not more than 5 consecutive days and for a maximum of 5 absences per school year.
    - Participation with a not-for-profit performing arts organization in a performance for a public school pupil audience for a maximum of up to 5 days per school year.

#### Method for Verification of Absence

When students have been absent from school, they must present a satisfactory explanation verifying the reason for absence. The following methods may be used to verify student absences:

- 1. Signed, written note from parent/guardian
- 2. Verbal conversation in person or by telephone between the parent/guardian and verifying employee
- 3. Visit to the student's home
- 4. Healthcare provider verification (doctor note)
  - a. A healthcare provider's note of illness will be accepted for any reported absences. When a student has had 14 absences in the school year for illness verified by methods #1-3 above without a healthcare providers note, any further absences must be verified by a healthcare provider.

A doctor/medical note is also required when a student has been out ill for more than 3 days. Under no circumstances may school officials require that a health-care provider's verification be submitted for re-admittance to class, unless the student has a serious medical condition or a contagious disease.

Parents requiring their child's absence from school for 1 or more weeks should contact the front office in advance of the scheduled absence. Extended leaves of absence from school will be considered and approved on a case-by-case basis by the school principal.

If a student misses 10 consecutive school days without communication from the parent/guardian then the school will assume that the student has been voluntarily withdrawn. A notice will be sent home after school administration has attempted to contact the family in several ways including but not limited to: phone calls, mail and at least one home visit.

#### Late Arrival:

Any student arriving at school after 8:00 am will sign in on the late arrival log in the main office and must go directly to class. Given the importance of being at school on time, every day, if a student arrives late, parents will be notified immediately and warnings will be issued if this becomes a recurring situation. Multiple late arrivals will result in the issuance of a Truancy Notification and a meeting with parents will be held to address the situation. If additional action is warranted, the student may be referred to the Student Attendance Review Board. Excessive tardiness can compromise your child's academic achievement.

#### **Unexcused Absences/Truancy**

Any absence for reasons other than those mentioned above will not be excused such as:

- Running errands
- Vacation or trips
- Family emergency
- Transportation problems
- Inclement weather

Students shall be classified as *truant* if the student is absent from school without a valid excuse three full days in one school year, or if the student is tardy or absent for more than any 30-minute period during the school day without a valid excuse on three occasions in one school year, or any combination thereof. Such students shall be reported to the school administration or the superintendent of schools and may be referred to the Student Attendance Review Board (SARB).

In addition, students shall be classified as *chronic truant* if the student is absent from school without valid excuse for 10 percent or more of the schools days in one school, from the date of enrollment to current date.

## **Truancy Process**

- 1. Each of the first two (2) unexcused absences will result in a call home to the parent/guardian.
- 2. Each additional unexcused absences will result in a call home to the parent/guardian. In addition, upon reaching three (3) unexcused absences in a school year, the parent/guardian will receive an "Initial Notification of Truancy" letter from the School. This letter must be signed by the parent/guardian and returned to the School. This letter, and all subsequent letter(s) sent home, shall be sent by Certified Mail, return receipt requested, or some other form of mail that can be tracked.
- 3. Upon reaching six (6) unexcused absences, the student will be classified as TRUANT and the parent/guardian will receive the "Second Notification of Truancy" letter with a conference request to meet with the principal or his/her designee. At the time of the conference, concerns regarding the student's attendance will be discussed in addition to reviewing possible interventions and supports.
- 4. Upon reaching nine (9) unexcused absences, student will be classified as HABITUAL TRUANT and the parent/guardian will receive the "Third Notification of Truancy" letter and will be referred to the School Attendance Review Team (SART). The SART panel may be composed of the school's administrator, social/mental health services,

school police officer, community agency representatives, and a referring school site representative. The SART panel will discuss the absence problem with the parent/guardian to work on solutions, develop strategies, discuss appropriate support services for the student and his/her family, and establish a plan to resolve the attendance issue.

- The SART panel shall direct the parent/guardian that no further unexcused absences or tardies can be tolerated
- b. The parent shall be required to sign a contract formalizing the agreement by the parents to improve the child's attendance or face additional administrative action. The contract will identify the corrective actions required in the future, and indicate that the SART panel shall have the authority to order one or more of the following consequences for non-compliance with the terms of the contract:
  - i. Parent/guardian to attend school with the child for one day
  - ii. Student retention
  - iii. After school detention program
  - iv. Required school counseling
  - v. Loss of field trip privileges
  - vi. Loss of school store privileges
  - vii. Loss of school event privileges
  - viii. Required remediation plan as set by the SART
  - ix. Notification to the District Attorney
- c. The SART panel may discuss other school placement options.
- d. Notice of action recommended by the SART will be provided in writing to the parent/guardian.
- 5. If the conditions of the SART contract are not met, the student may incur additional administrative action.
- 6. For all communications set forth in this process, the Charter School will use the contact information provided by the parent/guardian in the registration packet. It is the parent's or guardian's responsibility to update the Charter School with any new contact information.
- 7. If, after the above procedures have been followed, the student continues to have unexcused absences, the parent/guardian may receive notice that the student is in in violation of the SART contract. The student will then be required to appear before the SART panel again to discuss the unexcused absences. After such meeting, or after reasonable attempts by the SART panel to schedule the meeting if the parent/guardian is nonresponsive, the SART panel may recommend additional administrative action. The parent will receive written notice of the SART panel's recommendation.

## Student Attendance Review Teams and Board (SART and SARB)

By law, all children between 6 and 18 years of age are required to attend school and their parents have a legal responsibility to ensure their child's attendance. The law also states that a student's refusal to attend school regularly can result in a referral to the School Attendance Review Board (SARB), Juvenile Probation, and the Juvenile Court System. Additionally, parents who fail to compel their child's attendance may face criminal prosecution and penalties. (Education Code Section 48260.)

At PLN a student's refusal to attend school regularly can result in a referral to the School Attendance Review Team (SART), School Attendance Review Board (SARB), and the Court System. SART meet with students and families to collaborative identify persistent attendance issues, and develop solutions to resolve these issues. It is a panel that may include an Administrative Offices Coordinator, social/mental health services, school police officer, community agency representatives, and a referring school site representative. SARB addresses chronic attendance and truancy problems. The SARB meets with students and families to collaborative identify persistent attendance issues, and develop solutions to resolve these issues. It is a panel that may include the PLN SARB Coordinator, social/mental health services, school police officer or LAPD Officer, community agency representatives, and a referring school site representative.

Prior to referring a student to SARB, the school will help the student remedy his/her attendance situation by referring the student to the SART and Student Success Team (SST). Interventions may include counseling, mentoring, tutoring, after school program referral, behavioral support, wellness center referral and home visits. When school sites have exhausted their resources and attendance has not improved, a family can be referred to the SARB panel which will then schedule a hearing before a panel and the student and parent/guardian are required to attend.

### **Arrival at School**

Students may arrive on campus at 7:00 a.m. and go directly to the play yard or the lunch benches. They may also pick up breakfast and eat on the tables and benches on the lower level. These are the only areas of campus that are supervised before school starts. Unless students have made special arrangements (e.g., to meet with a teacher), they are to be in one of these supervised areas until 7:55 a.m. when the students will be directed to go up to their classrooms.

Parents can drop off students in front of the school by driving south on Stanford from 8th Street utilizing our valet drop off. Per LA City ordinance, please fully enter the coned area and proceed all the way to the stop sigh before allowing children to exit the car. This area is only for immediate drop-off or pick-up. After dropping off your children, drivers should continue south to 9th Street. The **School parking lot is reserved for staff only.** 

### **Dismissal from School**

Parents of any student not enrolled in the after-school program must indicate on our dismissal form whether their child will walk home, take public transportation, or wait to be picked up. If your child is not in the afterschool program, please ensure they are picked up no later than 15 minutes after school is dismissed. It is the parents' responsibility to arrive on time to pick up their child. Parents should call the front office to inform staff of their late arrival. Parents must arrive on time barring an emergency situation. Only adults (over the age of 18) listed on a student's emergency card will be allowed to pick up students

If there are repeated incidences of late pick-up, without prior notification, the school administration may require a meeting with a student's parents to address the situation. If late pick-up continues and is unaddressed, appropriate authorities (i.e. Child Protective Services, etc.) may be notified for assistance.

## **Permission to Leave School During the Day**

Only adults (over the age of 18) listed on a student's emergency card will be allowed to pick up students. The person picking up the student must present a proper form of identification. If a person not listed on the emergency card is attempting to pick up the student, the office staff will contact the parent/guardian from the office phone using only the numbers listed for them on the emergency card to confirm the authorization. It is the responsibility of the parent/guardian to update the emergency card whenever there is a change to phone numbers, addresses, or names of people that are authorized to pick up the student.

Parents who need their child to be released from school on their own prior to regularly scheduled dismissal time must provide written permission or come in person to the front office to inform the office staff. Students will not be released from campus at any time during the regular school day, including during the lunch period, without express written permission from or in the presence of a parent/guardian. If a written notice is received, the parent/guardian will be called to verify the request prior to releasing the student. Only the phone numbers listed on the Emergency Card will be used to contact the parent/guardian. Phone calls from the parent/guardian requesting their child to be released will only be accepted in emergency situations.

## **Contacting a Student during the School Day**

Parents needing to contact their child during the course of the school day should call the front office. Every effort will be made to get your message to your child.

## **After-School Program**

The Para Los Niños After-School program serves K-8 grade students at our Charter Elementary School, Charter Middle School and Gratts Primary Center. Our program is designed to provide all students with a safe and engaging environment. All of our after-school activities support general education core curriculum with academic enriching activities to reinforce and enhance academic achievement.

Our goal is to improve the academic performance and scholastic success of students in the program by providing high-quality academic programming after school. To meet this goal, the program offers students homework support to students, academic enrichment, recreation and enrichment activities, and linkages to other Para Los Niños Services.

All components and group activities also teach youth socialization skills as well as valuable lessons about sharing and cooperation. Throughout, the program builds team spirit and self-esteem through games and activities that incorporate "playing with a purpose" and "disguised learning".

We provide the following components:

- Academic support, homework assistance, academic enrichment
- Enrichment: Creative expression involving arts, crafts, music, and dance-- often conducted in collaboration with artists and arts organizations
- Physical recreation, organized sports, and team building activities
- Field trips
- Variety of programs from partners and collaborators
- Nutrition daily snack and drink
- Referrals / linkages to other Para Los Niños Services Collaborations and Partnerships

PLN draws on the expertise of our partners to offer additional enrichment academic components. PLN also utilizes community partners to provide students with access to arts, music and other educational enrichment activities. Students receive a variety of enrichment activities provided by our collaborative partners. These activities form a crucial part of the program's curriculum and will encourage youth to engage in creative expression, community service, and other activities.

Students enrolled in the after-school program will also be provided with an afternoon snack. For more information regarding the After-School Program at PLN Charter Middle School, please contact:

PLN Middle School Site Supervisor OR After School Program Director:

Moises Carrillo Office: Wellness Center (213) 896-2640 mcarrillo@paralosninos.org Cecilia Hernández, M.Ed. 1617 E. 7<sup>th</sup> Street Los Angeles, CA 90017 (213) 239-6605 Ext. 272 chernandez@paralosninos.org

### Valuables:

The use of electronic devices or other personal items by students is prohibited during normal school hours. The school is not responsible for valuables brought from home. Please regularly check your child's backpack for items not allowed in school. The following items are not allowed in school as they often become a distraction during school hours:

- Tablets, MP3 players, IPods, other music devices and/or cameras
- Cell phones
  - Although we realize that students may carry a cell phone for emergency purposes, cell phone use is not allowed during school hours, including during recess and lunch periods. We discourage the display and use of cell phones during school time.
- Handheld gaming devices

• Toys including but not limited to all balls, action figures, playing /trading cards, plush toys, dolls, costumes, skate boards, finger boards, elastic bands, board games etc.

If such a device or item is observed or heard by school staff, it may be confiscated and the student's parent will need to pick it up from the office. Photographing, videotaping or otherwise recording individuals without their permission is strictly prohibited. If a cellular phone, or electronic signaling device rings or is visible during testing, the device will be confiscated and the student removed from the test situation. Exceptions to this policy may be granted by the school administrator for purposes relating to the health needs or individual needs of a student.

Devices can be checked into the office before school can be picked up after school to avoid having these items confiscated.

\*If an item is confiscated, PLN staff is not responsible for the item if it is lost or stolen while in the staff member's possession.

### **PLN Charter Middle School Uniforms**

PLN Charter Middle School is a proud community of learners. One element in developing our community identity is our school uniform. Students are required to wear a uniform at school during school hours.

Our top reasons for asking our students to wear uniforms are:

- 1. There are many other schools in the area where our schools are located. For safety reasons, we want to be able to identify our students at a glance.
- 2. The clothing we wear indicates our purpose. When we go to the beach, we wear swimming suits. When we go to a wedding, we put on our best clothes. At PLN Charter Middle School, we dress for learning.
- 3. School uniforms put the focus on learning, not fashion. Uniforms also reduce bullying and teasing. *Please support our mission by taking our uniform seriously and wearing it with pride.*

#### **Description of the Uniform Policy:**

- Uniform items should be no larger/smaller than one size of the student's clothing size
- The PLN Charter Middle School uniform is:
  - Navy blue polo shirt
  - Khaki bottoms pants, shorts, skirts, skorts or jumpers (bottoms must be of appropriate length, no more than 3 inches above the knee)
- No baseball caps, or hats of any kind.
- Only closed-toe footwear with flat rubber soles.
- Any attire that may be a distraction will be confiscated. Distracting attire includes but is not limited to accessories such
  as belts not in the belt loops, extra clothing pieces, and excessive or large pieces of jewelry. School site personnel
  retains the discretion to decide what is considered distracting attire.
- Out of uniform consequences are:
  - 1st offense Verbal warning
  - 2nd offense Parent phone call
  - o 3rd offense Parent meeting
  - Continued offenses may result in other consequences

#### **Frequently Asked Questions**

#### What outerwear is acceptable?

The PLN Charter Middle School uniform only includes the navy blue polo shirt and the khaki bottoms. PLN does not require official outerwear, but at the Charter Middle School, outerwear must be either blue, black or grey, no logos, characters, designs, etc., of any kind.

#### Does the polo shirt have to bear the PLN logo?

No. Polo shirts without the PLN logo are acceptable as long as they are in the right color.

#### Does PLN work with a vendor that sells clothing that meets the uniform requirements?

Yes, please contact the school office for current vendor information.

#### What if I can't afford a uniform?

If you cannot afford clothing that meets the uniform requirements, please talk to the school's office manager.

#### If my child does not wear the uniform, can he or she still attend school?

Out of uniform students will not be denied admission on campus, participation in school, educational activities, nor denied continued enrollment in school. However, the consequences listed above are in place to encourage students to cooperate with uniform requirements.

## **Physical Education (PE) Uniforms**

Students are also required to wear a PE uniform every day. This includes:

- 1. PLN Mustangs Navy Blue Shorts
- 2. PLN Mustangs Gray PE Shirt
- 3. Name must be written on each item.
- 4. Shoes (with socks) that are appropriate for vigorous physical activity.

Each Friday, students are expected to take their PE uniforms home to wash them; students should bring their PE Uniforms back on Mondays.

#### Cold Weather:

Sweats are permitted on cold days. We recommend <u>Solid</u> Navy Blue sweatpants and <u>Solid</u> Gray colored sweatshirts. NO LOGOS, HOODS, POCKETS, OR ZIPPERS ON SWEATPANTS OR SWEATSHIRTS.

All newly enrolled students will be provided with a free PE uniform. If parents wish to purchase an additional PE uniform for their child, they may do so in the main office. If you cannot afford a PE uniform, please talk to the school's office manager.

## **Visiting Campus**

In order to preserve the safety of our students and staff, we require that all visitors go directly to the main office. Upon arrival, visitors must state their reason for the visit, provide the appropriate identification (if applicable), sign in, and obtain a visitor's badge if they will proceed to be onto campus. Reasons to be on campus include:

- Observing child's classroom
- Parents may only observe their child's classroom
- Visit is limited to a 20 minute with prior approval
- Visitors are asked not to interact with their child, any other student, or the teacher/staff
- If you would like to speak to your child's teacher, an appointment can be made in the office
- Meeting with a staff member which they have set an appointment with (e.g., principal, teacher, etc.)
- Parent meetings (e.g., Café con la Directora, committee meeting such as ELAC, etc.)
- Participation in a Workshop or Training

- Volunteer work (please see office for Parent Volunteer Handbook for detailed information on procedures for this)
- Principal approval for any other reason

Length of visits should be the time it takes for any of the above to take place unless the principal has approved for the visitor to stay on campus for an extended amount of time. All visitors should return to the office at the end of their visit to sign out. Thank you for helping us maintain a safe environment.

## **Off-Campus Learning**

An essential component of our instructional program is utilizing the rich resources available in our community. PLN Middle School students have the opportunity to participate in several off-campus learning opportunities arranged by school staff throughout the course of the year. Signed permission slips for off-campus trips will be required for any student participating in these activities.

### **Food Service:**

At PLN Middle School, we recognize the critical connection between a healthy mind and a healthy body. We are proud to offer our students food meticulously planned and produced by our partners at *Unified Nutrimeal*. We offer all PLN students breakfast and lunch free of charge. Students with specific dietary requirements including food allergies or other food restrictions should notify the front office and parents should complete a "Medical Statement to Request Special Meals and/or accommodations form.

Breakfast: served from 7:00 a.m. - 7:50 a.m.

Snack: Students can bring a healthy snack to eat during nutrition period

Lunch: served from 12:31 p.m. – 1:11 p.m.

Meals may only be consumed by students currently attending Para Los Ninos Charter Middle School. Food not consumed by the student may not be taken out of the lunch area. Per health and safety regulations, Para Los Ninos kitchen staff will dispose of all uneaten items. The funding PLN receives for student meals is contingent on our adherence to relevant policies, thus we must be very careful to follow these rules.

Students are allowed to bring snack from home but snack is limited to fresh vegetables, fruits and water or any item listed from the state of California as a 'healthy item.' Any other food may be confiscated from the child.

## Calendar

The following shows highlights from our 2016-2017 school year calendar.

First Day of School Monday, August 15, 2016

Back-To-School Night Thursday, September 1, 2016

Admissions Day Holiday – No School Friday, September 2, 2016

Labor Day Holiday – No School Monday, September 5, 2016

Professional Development – No School Friday, September 23, 2016

Parent Conferences Monday, Oct 10 – Friday Oct. 14, 2016

Professional Development – No School Friday, October 28, 2016

Veterans Day Holiday – No School Friday, November 11, 2016

Thanksgiving Break – No School Monday, November 24 – Friday, November 28, 2016

Winter Recess – No School Monday, December 19 – Friday, January 6, 2017

Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Birthday – No School Monday, January 16, 2017

Teacher Development – No School Friday, February 10, 2017

Presidents' Day Holiday – No School Monday, February 20, 2017

Parent Conferences Monday, March 13 – Friday, March 17, 2017

Cesar Chavez Day – No School Friday, March 31, 2017

Spring Break Monday, April 10 – Friday, April 14, 2017

Memorial Day Holiday – No School Monday, May 29, 2017

Last Day for Students Friday, June 9, 2017

Last Day for Teachers Monday, June 12, 2017

Final Report Cards for each semester will be mailed home. We will not have end-of-year conferences.

### **Admissions**

PLN CES is an open enrollment, tuition-free public school with no specific requirements for admission (e.g., minimum grade point average, test scores, discipline records, etc.). Enrollment to the school is open to any resident of the State of California. Enrollment is on a first come, first served basis. PLN CES enrolls all pupils who wish to attend to the extent that space allows. CA Ed. Code § 47605(d)(2)(A).

PLN CES is fully committed to serving all students who wish to attend, regardless of socio-economic status, race/ethnicity, academic achievement, special education needs or other "risk factors." If the number of students who wish to attend the school exceeds the openings available, entrance shall be determined by single random public drawing in accordance with Education Code §47605(d)(2) and all federal requirements.

Applications for admission to PLN CES are accepted during a specified enrollment period in the month of February or March. If the number of applications received during the open enrollment period exceeds the school's capacity at any grade level, attendance will be determined by a public, random drawing. The rules and procedures of the drawing will be communicated to all applicants via a written letter accompanying the Lottery Application form. Lottery procedures will be fairly executed, and will be overseen by PLN CES principal to ensure that they are accurately followed. The lottery will take place at the Charter School on a date publicized to applicants, at a time convenient for families to attend (evening hours). Families need not attend the lottery to claim their child's enrollment space. Once the open enrollment period ends, the lottery will take place 14 days later.

Students will be enrolled by grade level applying the following priorities and pursuant to 47605 (d)(2)(B) that students who reside in the District must be given priority over all other categories:

- 1. Students currently enrolled at PLN Elementary School (exempt from lottery)
- 2. Siblings of children admitted (exempt)
- 3. Children of PLN teachers and staff, not to exceed 10% of total population (exempt)
- 4. Students who reside in the LAUSD will be given priority in any lottery .

Within two weeks following the lottery, students who are offered spots will be asked to complete an Enrollment Packet within two weeks to secure their spot. School staff will be available to assist families in completing this paperwork if needed. Students who are on the wait list will be notified of their status in writing.

Those who apply after the lottery deadline are added to the end of the lottery waitlist in the order they are received. Vacancies that occur during the school year will be filled according to the wait list order determined during the lottery drawing. When an offer occurs during the school year, families will be contacted in the order of the wait list and will be given 48 hours to decide whether or not to accept a space at the school. In the event that no such wait list exists where the space is available, the space will be made available on a first come, first served basis to the next interested family at the appropriate grade level.

The waitlist for the current school year remains active until the end of the school year and does not "roll over"; applicants must reapply for the lottery annually if the school is unable to offer them admission for the current year.

Application Forms, the manual record of all lottery participants and their assigned lottery numbers, and other lottery-related documents will be physically filed on campus, and lottery results and waiting lists will be readily available in the school's main office for inspection upon request. Each applicant's admissions application will be kept on file for the academic year with his or her assigned lottery number in the school database and on his or her enrollment application.

## **Foster and Homeless Youth**

Foster youth means a child who has been removed from his/her home pursuant to California Welfare and Institutions Code section 309, is the subject of a petition filed under Welfare and Institutions Code sections 300 or 602, or has been removed from his/her home and is the subject of a petition filed under Welfare and Institutions Code 300 or 602.

The term "homeless children and youth" means individuals who lack a fixed, regular and adequate nighttime residence. It includes children and youths who (42 U.S.C. § 11434a):

- 1. Are sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing, economic hardship, or a similar reason; are living in motels, hotels, trailer parks or camping grounds due to the lack of alternative adequate accommodations; are living in emergency or transitional shelters; are abandoned in hospitals; or are awaiting foster care placement;
- Have a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designed for or ordinarily used as regular sleeping accommodations for human beings;
- 3. Are living in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings, substandard housing, bus or train stations, or similar settings; and
- 4. Migratory children and unaccompanied youth (youth not in the physical custody of a parent or guardian) may be considered homeless if they meet the above definition of "homeless."

Homeless status is determined in cooperation with the parent or guardian. In the case of unaccompanied youth, status is determined by the School Liaison.

#### School Liaison

PLN Middle School designates the following staff person as the School Liaison for homeless students: Lionel Chavez, Family Advocate
835 Stanford Ave.
Los Angeles, CA 90021
(213) 896-2640

## **Code of Conduct**

Para Los Niños staff and students are expected to conduct themselves in a manner that promotes the safest and highest quality learning environment for all members of our school community. PLN students and staff will be safe, responsible and respectful so that we can create a Community of Inquiry.

#### Safe School Guidelines:

- 1. We will respect differences of all types—physical, mental, emotional, social and spiritual. We will choose our words and actions to help, not hurt others. We will work to keep our school free of verbal and nonverbal put-downs regarding the following:
  - Academic progress
  - Age
  - Appearance/body image/mannerisms
  - Athletic ability
  - Belief systems
  - · Cultural, ethnic and/or racial background
  - Family background and family composition
  - Friendships
  - Languages
  - Learning styles
  - Physical challenges
  - Sexual harassment of any type, including gender stereotypes and homophobic taunts
- 2. We will use school-appropriate language.
- 3. We will not engage in or tolerate physical abuse, taunts or threats of any kind.

4. We will accept responsibility for our words and actions without excuses.

As a SAFE SCHOOL, we are committed to a caring community for learning in a safe environment. As a SAFE SCHOOL, we accept responsibility for our words and actions without excuses. As a commitment to the Safe School Guidelines, students, parents, teachers, and the principal will be asked to sign a School, Parent, and Student Compact at the beginning of each school year.

### **Student Policies and Consents**

The following are brief descriptions of the detailed forms that are part of the enrollment packet that must be signed to conform to the student policy or consent it corresponds to:

#### Media and Publicity Informed Consent and Release

By signing this form, parents/guardians give PLN permission to photograph and/or videotape their child and/or other members of the family for things such as Press Release, Advertising (e.g., brochures, PLN website) and Social Media. If you choose not to allow for your child to be photographed and/or videotaped, the office staff will document your request and inform the appropriate parties as needed. \*\*Once signed during the student's initial enrollment at Charter Middle School, this form will be good for the student's duration of enrollment at Charter Middle School.

#### Acceptable Use Policy for Use of Computers and the Internet

This form outlines what kind of behavior is acceptable while using computers and the internet at PLN Charter Middle School. Students may not use computers and the internet until this form has been signed by both the student and the parent/guardian.

\*\*This form must be signed at the beginning of every school year.

### Library and Textbook Parental Responsibility Form

This form provides information regarding the library process and what happens if students do not follow the library regulations when library material is in their possession. The legal parent/guardian must sign this form before the student is allowed to check out any library material. \*\*This form must be signed at the beginning of every school year.

## **Discipline**

Discipline policies for PLN Middle School reflect our vision to provide a comprehensive approach to education to meet individual students' educational, social and psychological needs. Furthermore, these policies reflect our goals of assisting at-risk students and their families in developing the competencies needed to overcome their challenging living environments. In order to ensure a caring community for learning in a safe environment, the administration, teachers, staff, students and parents/guardians of Para Los Niños Middle School are committed to maintaining a safe school for everyone.

Student discipline practices involve active participation of students, parents and staff and include opportunities for students to work cooperatively with each other, be respected and demonstrate respect for others, learn conflict resolution strategies, and take responsibility for daily behavior.

Discipline procedures involve individual conferences between student(s) and teachers and/or principal and administrators. Prevention and the development of appropriate behaviors will be taught in class lessons. Students will learn how problems are initiated and how problems escalate. Students, guided by the teacher, will learn appropriate "replacement behaviors" to resolve future problematic situations. Consequences for behaviors will include loss of privileges; letters or phone calls to parents/or guardian; parent/student/teacher conferences; behavioral contracts; in house suspension; and Student Success Team meetings.

When a student has repeated difficulty meeting the behavior standards of the school, a Student Success Team (SST) will be convened by parents (guardians), teachers, Para Los Niños Family Services, Para Los Niños Clinical Services, principal and other relevant program or after-school coordinators. The SST will develop a support plan that describes the behavioral goals, type of assistance, modifications and interventions to be implemented to assist the student and/or family in improving student behavior during the school day and after school. The team will come to a consensus on the support plan, identify who is responsible to implement each item of the plan and create a timeline in which to achieve the goals. Suspension may be one

option employed by the SST to assist in developing acceptable student conduct; however in-school suspension is considered preferable whenever possible and appropriate. A follow-up meeting date will be set at the initial SST meeting to ascertain progress.

The parents (guardians) will be engaged in goal setting and be empowered to become self-advocates in regard to meeting family needs. Parents will be required to participate on a regular and consistent basis in the Student Success Team as a condition of their child's enrollment.

#### Behaviors requiring immediate action

Our commitment to provide our students and staff with a learning space that is both physically and mentally safe for all our community members requires that the following behaviors will result in immediate action by the school's principal.

Sexual Harassment: All staff and students have the right to come to a school without threat of sexual harassment by any other adult, employee or student member of our community. Children will use the Safe School Form to make a report to the principal of any incident of alleged sexual harassment. The school principal will follow through with the Safe School Reporting Procedure. Adults will report any incidence of sexual harassment to the principal or the President and CEO of Para Los Niños.

*Bullying:* All staff and students have the right to come to a school without fear of or intimidation by any other adult or student member of our community. Children will use the Safe School Form to make a report to the principal of any incident of bullying. The school principal will follow through with the Safe School Reporting Procedure. Adults will report any incidence of bullying to the principal or the President and CEO of Para Los Niños.

*Drugs, Tobacco, & Alcohol:* Drugs, Tobacco, & Alcohol are prohibited on campus by all adults and students of PLN Middle School. Possession of these items must be reported immediately to the school principal and may be grounds for suspension or expulsion.

*Firearms, Weapons, and other Dangerous Items:* The possession of firearms, weapons, and other items that may be used as or are intended as weapons is prohibited on campus by all adults and students of PLN Middle School. Possession of these items must be reported immediately to the school principal and may be grounds for suspension or expulsion.

Defacing or damaging school property and materials will not be tolerated. Parents will be held responsible for the cost to replace or repair damages made.

A complete copy of PLN Middle School's Discipline Policy is available upon request and appears as Element 10 in the Charter Petition. (http://laschoolboard.org/sites/default/files/Final-Petition-Para-Los-Ninos-MS-02-12-13.pdf)

#### **Grounds for Suspension/Expulsion**

Students are subject to suspension or expulsion for incidents occurring:

- While on school grounds.
- While going to or coming from school.
- During the lunch period, whether on or off the campus.
- During, or while going to, or coming from, a school sponsored event.

Every effort will be made to avoid out-of-school suspension and expulsion, when possible. In-school suspension is preferred, due to lack of parental supervision during the school day and the anticipated at-risk nature of many PLN Charter School students. While the goal of the PLN Charter Middle School's discipline procedures is to avoid out-of-school suspension and expulsion when possible, the procedures for suspension and expulsion from PLN Charter Middle School will follow the procedures identified in the California Education Code, Section 48900. Identified infractions may result in immediate suspension or expulsion pursuant to all applicable sections of The Charter Schools Act and in accordance with California Education Code, Sections 48900 et seq. and 48915 as well as the federal Gun-Free Schools Act of 1994.

A pupil shall not be suspended from school or recommended for expulsion, unless the PLN superintendent or the principal of the school in which the pupil is enrolled determines that the pupil has committed an act as defined pursuant to any of subdivisions (a) to (r), inclusive:

- (a) (1) Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another person.
- (2) Willfully used force or violence upon the person of another, except in self-defense.
- (b) Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished a firearm, knife, explosive, or other dangerous object, unless, in the case of possession of an object of this type, the pupil had obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee, which is concurred in by the principal or the designee of the principal.
- (c) Unlawfully possessed, used, sold, or otherwise furnished, or been under the influence of, a controlled substance listed in Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 11053) of Division 10 of the Health and Safety Code, an alcoholic beverage, or an intoxicant of any kind.
- (d) Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell a controlled substance listed in Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 11053) of Division 10 of the Health and Safety Code, an alcoholic beverage, or an intoxicant of any kind, and either sold, delivered, or otherwise furnished to a person another liquid, substance, or material and represented the liquid, substance, or material as a controlled substance, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant.
- (e) Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion.
- (f) Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property.
- (g) Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property.
- (h) Possessed or used tobacco, or products containing tobacco or nicotine products, including, but not limited to, cigarettes, cigars, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets, and betel. However, this section does not prohibit use or possession by a pupil of his or her own prescription products.
- (i) Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity.
- (j) Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell drug paraphernalia, as defined in Section 11014.5 of the Health and Safety Code.
- (k) Disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of supervisors, teachers, administrators, school officials, or other school personnel engaged in the performance of their duties.
- (I) Knowingly received stolen school property or private property.
- (m) Possessed an imitation firearm. As used in this section, "imitation firearm" means a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar in physical properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude that the replica is a firearm.
- (n) Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Section 261, 266c, 286, 288, 288a, or 289 of the Penal Code or committed a sexual battery as defined in Section 243.4 of the Penal Code.
- (o) Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a pupil who is a complaining witness or a witness in a school disciplinary proceeding for purposes of either preventing that pupil from being a witness or retaliating against that pupil for being a witness, or both.
- (p) Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug Soma.
- (q) Engaged in, or attempted to engage in, hazing. For purposes of this subdivision, "hazing" means a method of initiation or preinitiation into a pupil organization or body, whether or not the organization or body is officially recognized by an educational institution, which is likely to cause serious bodily injury or personal degradation or disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a former, current, or prospective pupil. For purposes of this subdivision, "hazing" does not include athletic events or school-sanctioned events.

- (r) Engaged in an act of bullying. For purposes of this subdivision, the following terms have the following meanings: (1) "Bullying" means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act, and including one or more acts committed by a pupil or group of pupils as defined in Section 48900.2, 48900.3, or 48900.4, directed toward one or more pupils that has or can be reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following:
- (A) Placing a reasonable pupil or pupils in fear of harm to that pupil's or those pupils' person or property.
- (B) Causing a reasonable pupil to experience a substantially detrimental effect on his or her physical or mental health.
- (C) Causing a reasonable pupil to experience substantial interference with his or her academic performance.
- (D) Causing a reasonable pupil to experience substantial interference with his or her ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by a school.
- (2) (A) "Electronic act" means the transmission, by means of an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device, computer, or pager, of a communication, including, but not limited to, any of the following: (i) A message, text, sound, or image. (ii) A post on a social network Internet Web site including, but not limited to: (I) Posting to or creating a burn page. "Burn page" means an Internet Web site created for the purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in paragraph (1). (II) Creating a credible impersonation of another actual pupil for the purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in paragraph (1). "Credible impersonation" means to knowingly and without consent impersonate a pupil for the purpose of bullying the pupil and such that another pupil would reasonably believe, or has reasonably believed, that the pupil was or is the pupil who was impersonated. (III) Creating a false profile for the purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in paragraph (1). "False profile" means a profile of a fictitious pupil or a profile using the likeness or attributes of an actual pupil other than the pupil who created the false profile.
- (B) Notwithstanding paragraph (1) and subparagraph (A), an electronic act shall not constitute pervasive conduct solely on the basis that it has been transmitted on the Internet or is currently posted on the Internet. (3) "Reasonable pupil" means a pupil, including, but not limited to, an exceptional needs pupil, who exercises average care, skill, and judgment in conduct for a person of his or her age, or for a person of his or her age with his or her exceptional needs.
- (s) A pupil shall not be suspended or expelled for any of the acts enumerated in this section unless the act is related to a school activity or school attendance occurring within a school under the jurisdiction of the PLN superintendent or principal or occurring within any other school district.
- (t) A pupil who aids or abets, as defined in Section 31 of the Penal Code, the infliction or attempted infliction of physical injury to another person may be subject to suspension, but not expulsion, pursuant to this section, except that a pupil who has been adjudged by a juvenile court to have committed, as an aider and abettor, a crime of physical violence in which the victim suffered great bodily injury or serious bodily injury shall be subject to discipline pursuant to subdivision (a).
- (u) As used in this section, "school property" includes, but is not limited to, electronic files and databases.
- (v) For a pupil subject to discipline under this section, the PLN superintendent or principal may use his or her discretion to provide alternatives to suspension or expulsion that are age appropriate and designed to address and correct the pupil's specific misbehavior as specified in Section 48900.5.
- (w) It is the intent of the Legislature that alternatives to suspension or expulsion be imposed against a pupil who is truant, tardy, or otherwise absent from school activities.

#### **Mandatory Expulsion**

The PLN Charter Middle School shall comply with all sections of the California Education Code Section 48915, including, but not limited, to the following:

(a) 'Except as provided in subdivisions (c) and (e), the principal or the superintendent of schools shall recommend the expulsion of a pupil for any of the following acts committed at school or at a school activity off school grounds, unless the principal or

superintendent determines that expulsion should not be recommended under the circumstances or that an alternative means of corrections would address the conduct:' and ending with 48915(h) as written below.

- (A) Causing serious physical injury to another person, except in self-defense;
- (B) Possession of any knife or other dangerous object of no reasonable use to the pupil.
- (C) Unlawful possession of any controlled substance listed in Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 11053) of Division 10 of the Health and Safety Code, except for either of the following: The first offense for the possession of not more than one avoirdupois ounce of marijuana, other than concentrated cannabis. The possession of over-the-counter medication for use by the pupil for medical purposes or medication prescribed for the pupil by a physician.
- (D) Robbery or extortion.
- (E) Assault or battery, as defined in Sections 240 and 242 of the Penal Code, upon any school employee.
- (b) If the principal or PLN Superintendent makes a determination as described in paragraph (1), he or she is encouraged to do so as quickly as possible to ensure that the pupil does not lose instructional time.
- (c) Upon recommendation by the principal or PLN Superintendent, or by a the governing board of may order a pupil expelled upon finding that the pupil committed an act listed in paragraph (1) of subdivision or in subdivision (a), (b), (c), (d), or (e) of Section 48900. A decision to expel a pupil for any of those acts shall be based on a finding of one or both of the following:
  - (1) Other means of correction are not feasible or have repeatedly failed to bring about proper conduct.
  - (2) Due to the nature of the act, the presence of the pupil causes a continuing danger to the physical safety of the pupil or others.

The principal or PLN Superintendent shall immediately suspend, pursuant to Section 48911, and shall recommend expulsion of a pupil that he or she determines has committed any of the following acts at school or at a school activity off school grounds:

- (1) Possessing, selling, or otherwise furnishing a firearm. This subdivision does not apply to an act of possessing a firearm if the pupil had obtained prior written permission to possess the firearm from a certificated school employee, which is concurred in by the principal or the designee of the principal. This subdivision applies to an act of possessing a firearm only if the possession is verified by an employee of a school district. The act of possessing an imitation firearm, as defined in subdivision (m) of Section 48900, is not an offense for which suspension or expulsion is mandatory pursuant to this subdivision and subdivision (d), but it is an offense for which suspension, or expulsion pursuant to subdivision (e), may be imposed.
- (2) Brandishing a knife at another person.
- (3) Unlawfully selling a controlled substance listed in Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 11053) of Division 10 of the Health and Safety Code.
- (4) Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault as defined in subdivision (n) of Section 48900 or committing a sexual battery as defined in subdivision (n) of Section 48900.
- (5) Possession of an explosive.
- (d) The governing board shall order a pupil expelled upon finding that the pupil committed an act listed in subdivision (c), and shall refer that pupil to a program of study that meets all of the following conditions: (1) Is appropriately prepared to accommodate pupils who exhibit discipline problems. (2) Is not provided at a comprehensive middle, junior, or senior high school, or at any elementary school. (3) Is not housed at the school site attended by the pupil at the time of suspension.
- (e) Upon recommendation by the principal the governing board may order a pupil expelled upon finding that the pupil, at school or at a school activity off of school grounds violated subdivision (f), (g), (h), (i), (j), (k), (l), or (m) of Section 48900, or Section 48900.2, 48900.3, or 48900.4, and either of the following:

- (1) That other means of correction are not feasible or have repeatedly failed to bring about proper conduct.
- (2) That due to the nature of the violation, the presence of the pupil causes a continuing danger to the physical safety of the pupil or others.
- (f) The governing board shall refer a pupil who has been expelled pursuant to subdivision (b) or (e) to a program of study that meets all of the conditions specified in subdivision (d). Notwithstanding this subdivision, with respect to a pupil expelled pursuant to subdivision (e), if the county superintendent of schools certifies that an alternative program of study is not available at a site away from a comprehensive middle, junior, or senior high school, or an elementary school, and that the only option for placement is at another comprehensive middle, junior, or senior high school, or another elementary school, the pupil may be referred to a program of study that is provided at a comprehensive middle, junior, or senior high school, or at an elementary school.
- (g) As used in this section, "knife" means any dirk, dagger, or other weapon with a fixed, sharpened blade fitted primarily for stabbing, a weapon with a blade longer than 31 /2 inches, a folding knife with a blade that locks into place, or a razor with an unguarded blade.
- (h) As used in this section, the term "explosive" means "destructive device" as described in Section 921 of Title 18 of the United States Code. Whenever a PLN Middle School student is recommended for suspension or expulsion, PLN administration will follow the procedures set forth in Element 10 of the Charter Petition.

### **Students with Disabilities and Medical Conditions**

At Para Los Niños Charter Middle School we support the learning of all of our students. We follow all federal and state mandates and Los Angeles Unified School District policies and guidelines on the education of students with special needs and medical conditions.

#### Section 504

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504) is a federal civil rights law that prohibits discrimination against individuals with disabilities in programs and activities that receive financial assistance from the U.S. Department of Education. Discrimination/harassment in any form toward individuals on the basis of their actual or perceived disability is unacceptable and will not be tolerated. The District will promptly investigate all complaints of disability-based discrimination/harassment and take reasonable actions to stop future incidents of discrimination/harassment.

Section 504 also requires that students with disabilities be provided a free and appropriate public education (FAPE). For students who are not eligible for special education services, but meet the federal definition of disabled under Section 504, a 504 Plan is developed which indicates the accommodations, supplementary aids and/or services that will be provided to assist the student in accessing the general education program. Parents or guardians must be notified in writing of any District decisions regarding the identification, evaluation, and/or educational placement of students and their right to participate in, and/or appeal these decisions under Section 504. For further information about Section 504 and/or assistance in filing an appeal or complaint regarding Section 504, contact the Educational Equity Compliance Office at (213) 241-7682.

#### **Special Education Services**

Children learn in a variety of ways, with most students learning effectively in a traditional school setting. However, sometimes children with disabilities and learning differences need services beyond accommodations and modifications to the general education program. Children with disabilities may be eligible to receive special education services as determined by an Individualized Education Program (IEP) team, which includes the student's parent. Special education services are designed to meet the unique educational needs of students with disabilities and are provided at no cost to parents. To the maximum extent appropriate, students with disabilities must be educated with their non-disabled peers in the general education environment at school. Parents of school age children who suspect their child may have a disability who may need special education should contact the principal. Further information concerning special education programs and services is provided in the District's publication, A Parent's Guide to Special Education Services (Including Procedural Rights and Safeguards) which is available at

our school and on the Division of Special Education website: http://sped.lausd.net/. Assistance related to special education issues is available from the principal.

## Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) (20 U.S.C. § 1232g; 34 CFR Part 99) is a Federal law that protects the privacy of student education records. The law applies to all schools that receive funds under an applicable program of the U.S. Department of Education.

FERPA gives parents certain rights with respect to their children's education records. These rights transfer to the student when he or she reaches the age of 18 or attends a school beyond the high school lever. Students to whom the rights have transferred are "eligible students."

Parents or eligible students have the right to inspect and review the student's education records maintained by the school. Schools are not required to provide copies of records unless, for reasons such as great distance, it is impossible for parents or eligible students to review the records. Schools may charge a fee for copies.

Parents or eligible students have the right to request that a school correct records which they believe to be inaccurate or misleading. If the school decides not to amend the record, the parent or eligible student then has the right to a formal hearing. After the hearing, if the school still decides not to amend the record, the parent or eligible student has the right to place a statement with the record setting forth his or her view about the contested information.

Generally, schools must have written permission from the parent or eligible student in order to release any information from a student's education record. However, FERPA allows schools to disclose those records, without consent, to the following parties or under the following conditions (34 CFR § 99.31):

- To other school officials, including teachers, within the educational agency or institution whom the school has determined to have legitimate educational interests. This includes contractors, consultants, volunteers, or other parties to whom the school has outsourced institutional services or functions, provided that the conditions listed in §99.31(a)(1)(i)(B)(1) (a)(1)(i)(B)(2) are met. (§99.31(a)(1)).
- To officials of another school, school system, or institution of postsecondary education where the student seeks or
  intends to enroll, or where the student is already enrolled if the disclosure is for purposes related to the student's
  enrollment or transfer, subject to the requirements of §99.34.
- To authorize representatives of the U. S. Comptroller General, the U. S. Attorney General, the U.S. Secretary of Education, or State and local educational authorities, such as the State educational agency in the parent or eligible student's State (SEA). Disclosures under this provision may be made, subject to the requirements of §99.35, in connection with an audit or evaluation of Federal- or State-supported education programs, or for the enforcement of or compliance with Federal legal requirements that relate to those programs. These entities may make further disclosures of PII to outside entities that are designated by them as their authorized representatives to conduct any audit, evaluation, or enforcement or compliance activity on their behalf.
- In connection with financial aid for which the student has applied or which the student has received, if the information is necessary to determine eligibility for the aid, determine the amount of the aid, determine the conditions of the aid, or enforce the terms and conditions of the aid.
- To State and local officials or authorities to whom information is specifically allowed to be reported or disclosed by a State statute that concerns the juvenile justice system and the system's ability to effectively serve, prior to adjudication, the student whose records were released, subject to §99.38. (§99.31(a)(5)). To organizations conducting studies for, or on behalf of, the school, in order to: (a) develop, validate, or administer predictive tests; (b) administer student aid programs; or (c) improve instruction.
- To accrediting organizations to carry out their accrediting functions.
- To parents of an eligible student if the student is a dependent for IRS tax purposes.
- To comply with a judicial order or lawfully issued subpoena..
- To appropriate officials in connection with a health or safety emergency, subject to §99.36.
- Information the school has designated as "directory information" under §99.37.

Parents have the right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the Charter School of Morgan Hill to comply with the requirements of FERPA. The name and address of the Office that administers FERPA are:

Family Policy Compliance Office U.S. Department of Education 400 Maryland Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20202

"Directory information" is information that is generally not considered harmful or an invasion of privacy if released. Directory information can be disclosed to outside organizations without a parent's prior written consent. Outside organizations include, but are not limited to, companies that manufacture class rings or publish yearbooks. PLN Middle School has designated the following information as directory information:

- Student's name
- Address
- Telephone listing
- Electronic mail address
- Photograph
- Date and place of birth
- Dates of attendance
- Grade level
- Participation in officially recognized activities and sports
- Weight and height of members of athletic teams
- Degrees, honors, and awards received
- The most recent educational agency or institution attended
- Student ID number, user ID, or other unique personal identifier used to communicate in electronic systems that cannot be used to access education records without a PIN, password, etc. (A student's SSN, in whole or in part, cannot be used for this purpose.)

If you do not wish PLN Middle School to disclose directory information from your child's education records without your prior written consent, you must notify the School in writing at the time of enrollment or re-enrollment. Please notify the following:

Juan Páez, Office Manager (213) 896-2640

\*\*Once filed with PLN Middle School, this form will be good for the student's duration of enrollment at PLN Middle School. Changes can be made by contacting the person above.

### Parent Involvement

We recognize that our parents are both committed to the well-being of their children and stretched for available time. We recognize that parent participation may look different for every family, and we encourage all parents and guardians to be active participants in their child's education. We expect at least one parent or guardian to be present 3 times a year at student/parent/teacher conferences. Beyond that, whether you are supporting academic success at home and/or if you are a regular face on our campus, we commend you for your commitment to your child's future.

#### **Homework Policy**

The purpose of homework is to provide students practice with skills being learned, to extend learning, and to provide parents an opportunity to see their children's work. In addition, homework helps children to learn responsibility and time management. Parents can support their child in completing homework in two ways. First, parents should help to **identify a distraction free place and time** in which homework is regularly completed. It is always helpful if a parent or other responsible adult is close by to ensure that this space truly remains distraction-free. Second, **parents can check in nightly** with their child about his or her homework progress. Parents can ask their child to show them completed work and talk about upcoming deadlines. It always

helps to establish a routine regarding homework. Homework should not be an unpleasant experience. If this is the case, please be sure to talk with your child's teacher.

All Para Los Niños Charter Middle School, students are expected to read for at least 30 minutes, 5 days a week. Additional assignments will be given on a regular basis by classroom teachers. If students are spending excessive time working on their homework and it is not completed, please contact the teacher.

#### Committees

Parent involvement is an essential key to the teams that help make vital decisions that are critical to the performance and success of our school, therefore, we highly encourage parents to sign up to participate in the following committees:

#### School Site Council (SSC):

The school site council is an exciting committee that has direct impact on the way we spend a portion of our budget. The council is comprised of equal parts parents, teachers, and the school principal. If you are interested in helping us make decisions about the programs on which we spend our school's money, contact the school principal.

#### English Learner Advisory Committee (ELAC):

The ELAC committee is comprised of a minimum of 3-9 parents of English Learner (EL) students that are interested in learning about and advocating for the academic journey of their EL student. The ELAC works closely with the School Site Council by making recommendations based on data regarding curriculum, academic progress, and yearly academic goals. Committee members will also learn about the reclassification process and how they can support success in school.

#### Local Control Accountability Plan(LCAP) Committee:

The LCAP is a three year plan of accountability that is renewed annually. Each school district must create this accountability plan to assess the impact of funds from LCFF (Local Control Funding Formula). The LCAP committee is comprised of parents, teachers, school community members, and administrators. The committee meets to discuss progress on items included in the current LCAP and to assist school administrators in preparing next year's LCAP. Members of this committee learn how to plan strategically to support learning outcomes at their school and how these goals can be accomplished through measurable annual goals.

#### Workshops/Parenting Classes

PLN is committed to providing our parents with opportunities for development. Whether it be personal development or ways to help your child succeed, we are more than happy to work with outside partners to provide workshops, classes, and health care support that will provide you the opportunity to grow as a family and as an individual. In addition to workshops and classes provided by PLN, we have also partnered with the organizations such as the Parent Institute for Quality Education (PIQUE), Eisner Pediatrics for Dental Care, Vision to Learn, and UCLA's Parent Project who deliver high quality programs.

Our Family Advocates help with organizing these types of partners and events. You will be informed of these opportunities through flyers sent home and through our parent communication system, One Call. However, if you have any suggestions for classes or workshops that you feel will assist you in raising your child or developing yourself, please share your ideas by visiting/calling the office and speaking to the Family Advocate.

#### Volunteering

Parents are always welcome to volunteer. Please visit the school office to obtain the Volunteer Handbook for detailed information regarding the volunteer policy and procedures and forms required to volunteer.

## Policy Against Bullying, Hazing, and Harassment

PLN Middle School is committed to providing a safe and civil learning and working environment that is free of unlawful harassment under Title IX (sex), Title VI (race, color, or national origin), and Section 504 and Title II of the ADA. The School prohibits sexual harassment and harassment based upon pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions, race, re race, religion, creed, color, gender, gender identity, gender expression, national origin or ancestry, physical or mental disability, medical condition, marital status, age, sexual orientation, or any other basis protected by federal, state, local law, ordinance or regulation. The School does not condone or tolerate harassment of any type, including bullying, discrimination, or intimidation, by any employee, independent contractor or other person with which the Charter School does business, or any other individual, student, or volunteer. Intimidation, bullying, cyber-bullying, and/or hazing toward any member of the school community, whether by or against any student, staff, or other third parties, is strictly prohibited and will not be tolerated.

The Para Los Niños bullying and hazing policy requires that all schools and all personnel promote mutual respect, tolerance, and acceptance among students and staff. All students and staff have the inalienable right to attend campuses which are safe, secure and peacefull [Article 1, Section 28(c) of the California State Constitution]. The School Administration and Charter School Board will not tolerate any gestures, comments, threats, or actions which (i) cause, or threaten to cause, or an objective and reasoned third-party would determine was intended to cause, bodily harm or personal degradation, or (ii) creates, or an objective and reasoned third-party would determine was intended to create, an intimidating, threatening, or abusive environment for any student, staff member, member of the administration, parent or guardian, or other third-party.

This policy applies to all school-related activities and/or engagements, including, but not limited to classroom activities, recess or lunch activities, participation in clubs and activities, email messages, text messages, discussions, telephonic communications, or online forums related to school activities, field trips, open houses, school performances, school athletic competitions, and any other in-person school-related activities on school property. This policy also applies to those activities or engagements which occur off school property if the student or employee is at any school-sponsored, school-approved, or school-related activity or function, such as field trips or events where students are under the school's control, in a school vehicle, where an employee is engaged in school business, or where the prohibited behavior is facilitated through the use of any school property or resources.

Bullying means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act, and including one or more acts committed by a pupil or group of pupils directed toward one or more pupils that has or can be reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following:

- (A) Placing a reasonable pupil or pupils in fear of harm to that pupil's or those pupils' person or property.
- (B) Causing a reasonable pupil to experience a substantially detrimental effect on his or her physical or mental health.
- (C) Causing a reasonable pupil to experience substantial interference with his or her academic performance.
- (D) Causing a reasonable pupil to experience substantial interference with his or her ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by a school.

Cyber-bullying is bullying (see above) conducted via electronic communication technology (e.g., texts, e-mails, blogs, postings, etc.). A person who engages in cyber-bullying at school or school-related activities and events is subject to disciplinary action even if the bullying occurred on a personal electronic device. Cyber- bullying that occurs off-campus but impacts the educational environment or compromises the safety of the school may fall under Para Los Niños's jurisdiction.

Hazing is any method of initiation, pre-initiation, or rite of passage associated with actual or desired membership in a student organization or student body, whether or not it is officially recognized by the educational institution.

Parents and students are encouraged to immediately report any acts of bullying or cyber-bullying to the school and to work with their local school site administration to address any problems or concerns.

## **Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP)**

Para Los Niños has the primary responsibility to ensure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. Para Los Niños shall investigate complaints alleging failure to comply with those laws and regulations alleging discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying against any protected group, as well as unauthorized charging of pupil fees for educational activities. Para Los Niños shall seek to resolve, at the local level, those complaints using policies and procedures known as the Uniform Complaint Procedures (UCP) adopted by our governing board. Unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying complaints may be based on actual or perceived sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, race or ethnicity, ethnic group identification, ancestry, nationality, national origin, religion, color, mental or physical disability, age, or on the basis of a person's association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived categories, in any program or activity that receives or benefits from state financial assistance.

Complaints alleging discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying must be filed within six (6) months from the date the alleged act occurred or the date the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged act, unless the time for filing is extended by the Compliance Officer or his or her designee.

The UCP shall also be used when addressing complaints alleging failure to comply with state and/or federal laws in:

- Adult Education
- After School Education and Safety
- Child Care and Development Programs including state preschool
- Consolidated Categorical Programs
- · Discrimination, Harassment, Intimidation, and Bullying
- Foster and Homeless Youth
- Nutrition Services USDA Civil Rights
- School Facilities
- Special Education
- Lactating Pupils
- Unlawful Pupil Fees

A pupil shall not be required to pay a pupil fee for participation in an educational activity, unless the charge for such a fee is specifically authorized by law and does not violate Education Code Section 49011. A pupil fee includes, but is not limited to, all of the following:

- 1. A fee charged to a pupil as a condition for registering for school or classes, or as a condition for participation in a class or an extracurricular activity, regardless of whether the class or activity is elective or compulsory, or is for credit.
- 2. A security deposit, or other payment, that a pupil is required to make to obtain a lock, locker, book, class apparatus, musical instrument, clothes, or other materials or equipment.
- 3. A purchase that a pupil is required to make to obtain materials, supplies, equipment, or clothes associated with an educational activity.

A complaint of noncompliance should be filed first with the principal of the school under the UCP. A complainant not satisfied with the decision of the school may appeal the decision to Para Los Niños's UCP Coordinator and shall receive a written appeal decision within 60 days of receipt of the school site complaint. Complaints related to pupil fees for participation in educational activities may be filed anonymously if the complaint provides evidence or information leading to evidence to support an allegation of noncompliance with the requirements of Education Code sections 49010 et seq.

The complainant has a right to appeal our Decision of complaints regarding specific programs, pupil fees and the LCAP to the California Department of Education (CDE) by filing a written appeal within 15 days of receiving our Decision.

The appeal must be accompanied by a copy of the originally-filed complaint and a copy of our Decision.

The complainant is advised of civil law remedies, including, but not limited to, injunctions, restraining orders, or other remedies or orders that may be available under state or federal discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying laws, if applicable.

A copy of the complete UCP may be requested at the school office at any time.

UCP COORDINATOR
Josh Ciszek, Chief Operating Officer
(213) 250-4800 Ext. 503

## **Health and Safety**

The health and safety of all members of our school community are of central importance. The following policies are intended to support the ongoing success of all who attend, visit, or work at our school. For a more detailed description of PLN Charter Middle School safety procedures please see the complete PLN – CMS Safety Plan, which is available upon request in the main office and online at <a href="https://www.paralosninos.org">www.paralosninos.org</a>.

#### Internet Use and Safety

Our students live and will work in a world fully integrated with technology. We believe that students need opportunities to learn how to use these powerful tools responsibly and as a means to achieve their academic and personal goals. We are fortunate to have all of our computers directly linked to the internet. By turning a computer on, students can access information for learning from all over the world.

All students with internet access at PLN Middle School are trained in internet use, including safety and ethics issues, *prior* to being allowed access to PLN Middle School computers. The PLN Middle School staff will have annual staff development around the changing nature of the internet as a powerful teaching and learning tool as well as its potential hazards.

### **Immunizations**

All new students enrolling at PLN Middle School must present an up-to-date immunization record. All 7th graders must also show proof of having received the TDap immunization before starting school. There is no grace period for immunizations. Students who do not meet the State guidelines for immunizations must be excluded from the school until the requirements are met with the exception of students with a valid medical waiver that meets state requirements, homeless students or student's part of the foster care system. The federal McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act requires schools to enroll new students who are homeless even if their immunization records are missing or unavailable at the time of enrollment. California law requires schools to immediately enroll foster children transferring to their school even if a foster child is unable to produce immunization records normally required for school entry. Once a homeless student or a foster child is enrolled, school staff should work with the foster family or school where the student was transferred from to obtain the student's immunization records quickly as possible. Students who have been exposed to a communicable disease for which they have not been immunized may be excluded from school at the discretion of the School.

#### Injuries, Communicable Diseases, and Medical Conditions:

Children who arrive to school ill or with an injury are subject to be examined by the office staff or school nurse. Children, who are injured or become ill during school hours are sent to the health office for first aid. The office staff and nurse can only administer soap, water, ice and bandages for injuries or illnesses. If an injury or illness is deemed to be serious and/or endangering to student's health and well-being, parents will be called to pick up the child within one (1) hour as these conditions may require to be monitored by a parent and/or physician. Such situations include:

- vomiting
- open wounds
- contusions
- diarrhea
- acute coughing or sneezing
- extreme muscle pain or nose bleeding
- redness in eye(s)
- fever of 100° F or higher.

If a child is sent home due to a high fever, diarrhea or vomiting, he/she may not return to school until 24 hours have passed without the condition.

PLN Middle School will call 911 if school staff determine medical attention is required.

If a student sustains an injury that requires stiches, a cast, crutches, leg brace, or neck brace a medical/doctor note stating that the student is cleared to return to school will be required. This note should state any restrictions that the student may have (e.g. unable to use stairs, participate in physical education activity, etc.) and the student may only return on the date stated on the medical note. A student attending school in a wheelchair must inform the school office and/or school nurse prior to returning to school so proper accommodations can be made. Home remedies or cultural specialists (e.g., "sobador") are not an acceptable form of treatment/clearance.

If your child has a known pre-existing medical condition (e.g., allergies, asthma, diabetes, seizure disorder, etc.), please notify the office immediately. Notify the office if there are any special instructions or procedures for the care of your child if a problem should arise. Children with short-term health problems that prevent them from attending school should make arrangements with the school for a temporary plan to continue the student's education while at home.

If your child contracts any of the following diseases, please notify us immediately. We will also notify you of any communicable diseases that your child may have been exposed.

Symptoms of Some Communicable Diseases (according to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 2016):

Disease	Symptoms	Incubation Period
•Chicken pox	Mild fever, small raised pimples	14-16 days
•Measles	Fever, cough, rash, red eyes	10-12 days
•Rubella	Fever, rash	12-23 days
•Mumps	Fever, neck swelling below ears	16-18 days
•Polio	Fever, sore throat, rash	3-6 days
•Scarlet Fever	Fever, sore throat, rash	24-48 hours
•Scabies	Itching of skin, rash	1-2 months
•Bacterial Meningitis	Fever, headache, vomiting, stiff neck	1-4 days

Students may be excluded for head lice at the end of the school day, but readmitted after appropriate treatment is instituted. The presence of nits alone (after treatment) is not an absolute indication for exclusion and children should not be absent from school for extended periods of time due to this treatable condition. An alert will be sent home to notify other parents about the finding, but the student shall remain anonymous.

#### **Information Regarding Type 2 Diabetes**

Type 2 diabetes is the most common form of diabetes in adults

- Until a few years ago, type 2 diabetes was rare in children, but it is becoming more common, especially for overweight teens
- According to the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), one in three American children born after 2000 will develop type 2 diabetes in his or her lifetime.

Type 2 diabetes affects the way the body is able to use sugar (glucose) for energy.

- The body turns the carbohydrates in food into glucose, the basic fuel for the body's cells.
- The pancreas makes insulin, a hormone that moves glucose from the blood to the cells.
- In type 2 diabetes, the body's cells resist the effects of insulin, and blood glucose levels rise.
- Over time, glucose reaches dangerously high levels in the blood, which is called hyperglycemia.
- Hyperglycemia can lead to health problems like heart disease, blindness, and kidney failure.

Risk Factors Associated with Type 2 Diabetes

It is recommended that students displaying or possibly experiencing the risk factors and warning signs associated with type 2 diabetes be screened (tested) for the disease.

#### Risk Factors

Researchers do not completely understand why some people develop type 2 diabetes and others do not; however, the following risk factors are associated with an increased risk of type 2 diabetes in children:

- Being overweight. The single greatest risk factor for type 2 diabetes in children is excess weight. In the U.S., almost
  one out of every five children is overweight. The chances are more than double that an overweight child will develop
  diabetes.
- Family history of diabetes. Many affected children and youth have at least one parent with diabetes or have a significant family history of the disease.
- Inactivity. Being inactive further reduces the body's ability to respond to insulin.
- Specific racial/ethnic groups. Native Americans, African Americans, Hispanics/Latinos, or Asian/Pacific Islanders are more prone than other ethnic groups to develop type 2 diabetes.
- Puberty. Young people in puberty are more likely to develop type 2 diabetes than younger children, probably because
  of normal rises in hormone levels that can cause insulin resistance during this stage of rapid growth and physical
  development

Warning Signs and Symptoms Associated with Type 2 Diabetes

Warning signs and symptoms of type 2 diabetes in children develop slowly, and initially there may be no symptoms. However, not everyone with insulin resistance or type 2 diabetes develops these warning signs, and not everyone who has these symptoms necessarily has type 2 diabetes

- Increased hunger, even after eating
- Unexplained weight loss
- Increased thirst, dry mouth, and frequent urination
- Feeling very tired
- Blurred vision
- Slow healing of sores or cuts
- Dark velvety or ridged patches of skin, especially on the back of the neck or under the arms
- Irregular periods, no periods, and/or excess facial and body hair growth in girls
- High blood pressure or abnormal blood fats levels

Type 2 Diabetes Prevention Methods and Treatments

Healthy lifestyle choices can help prevent and treat type 2 diabetes. Even with a family history of diabetes, eating healthy foods in the correct amounts and exercising regularly can help children achieve or maintain a normal weight and normal blood glucose levels.

- Eat healthy foods. Make wise food choices. Eat foods low in fat and calories.
- Get more physical activity. Increase physical activity to at least 60 minutes every day.\
- Take medication. If diet and exercise are not enough to control the disease, it may be necessary to treat type 2 diabetes with medication.

The first step in treating type 2 diabetes is to visit a doctor. A doctor can determine if a child is overweight based on the child's age, weight, and height. A doctor can also request tests of a child's blood glucose to see if the child has diabetes or pre-diabetes (a condition which may lead to type 2 diabetes).

Types of Diabetes Screening Tests That Are Available

 Glycated hemoglobin (A1C) test. A blood test measures the average blood sugar level over two to three months. An A1C level of 6.5 percent or higher on two separate tests indicates diabetes.

- Random (non-fasting) blood sugar test. A blood sample is taken at a random time. A random blood sugar level of 200
  milligrams per deciliter (mg/dL) or higher suggests diabetes. This test must be confirmed with a fasting blood glucose
  test.
- Fasting blood sugar test. A blood sample is taken after an overnight fast. A fasting blood sugar level less than 100 mg/dL is normal. A level of 100 to 125 mg/dL is considered pre-diabetes. A level of 126 mg/dL or higher on two separate tests indicates diabetes.
- Oral glucose tolerance test. A test measuring the fasting blood sugar level after an overnight fast with periodic testing
  for the next several hours after drinking a sugary liquid. A reading of more than 200 mg/dL after two hours indicates
  diabetes.

Type 2 diabetes in children is a preventable/treatable disease and the guidance provided in this information sheet is intended to raise awareness about this disease. Contact your student's school nurse, school administrator, or health care provider if you have questions. For more information about Type 2 diabetes and to find this information in alternate languages, visit http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/hn/type2diabetes.asp.

### **Medications**

If a student requires medication during school hours, a parent or guardian must have the student's doctor complete a "Request for Medication to be Taken During School Hours" form that can be obtained in the school office. School staff will only administer medicine when this form has been completed and if the medicine has been prescribed by a physician and has a prescription label with directions and batch information on the bottle.

Students who need to keep medicine on campus in case of an emergency will need a doctor's note and the "Request for Medication to be Taken During School Hours." All medication is kept in the health office and is inaccessible to children at all times. These requests can be renewed by filling out a renewal form, UNLESS the type of medication or dosage has changed

## **Overall Welfare**

Para Los Niños takes all possible precautions for safeguarding children and youth in our care against bodily harm, illness, injury or any other form of maltreatment. In all suspected cases of child abuse, Para Los Niños and its employees are mandated by the State of California and agency policy to file a report with the proper authorities.

## **Emergency Preparedness**

We recognize that despite our best efforts to create a campus that is safe and secure for our students, there are potential situations outside of our control which may require emergency procedures. While we hope that we will never encounter such a situation, we are fully prepared should we need to evacuate or lock-down our campus. PLN Middle School is equipped with emergency supplies for a 72 hour period should students and staff be required to remain on campus. For a full description of PLN CMS emergency procedures please see the complete PLN – CMS Safety Plan, which is available upon request in the main office and readily available online at www.paralosninos.org.

Evacuation Plan: All PLN Middle School staff and students are trained on the procedures for evacuating the school. An evacuation will occur when school administration or emergency service providers have determined that it is unsafe for people to occupy our buildings. Examples of situations in which evacuation will occur include fire or earthquake. Evacuations will be orderly and have as their first priority the safety of all *people* on our campus. Students and staff must leave behind all non-emergency items when evacuating campus.

In many situations, students will be able to safely return to campus following an emergency evacuation once the campus has been deemed safe for occupation. In the event that students cannot safely return to campus, parents will be notified via a phone tree that they must pick-up their child. Parents should not enter an evacuated building. Students will only be released from the designated pick-up point to an adult listed on their emergency release form with a photo I.D. To update or complete an

emergency release form, please see the front office. **Please do not call the campus in the event of an emergency.** Office personnel will be evacuated and unable to answer phone lines.

<u>Lock-Down Plan:</u> All PLN Middle School staff and students are trained on the procedures for locking-down the school. Lock-downs will be orderly and have as their first priority the safety of all *people* on our campus. A lock-down will occur when school administration or emergency service providers have determined that it is unsafe for people to be moving around our building. Examples of situations in which lock-downs will occur include the presence of strangers on campus or riots on or off campus.

In the event of a lock-down, all parents will be notified of procedures via a phone tree. **Please do not call the campus while the campus is on lock-down.** We will need access to all our phone lines and will need to focus our attention to resolving the circumstances that have led to the lock-down. Parents should not enter a building that is on lock-down as it will compromise their own safety and the safety of those on campus.

## **Staff Roster**

Administration: Sandy Mejia, Principal smejia@paralosninos.org	(213) 896-2640
Chris Coyle, Director of Special Education (Interim Assistant Principal) ccoyle@paralosninos.org	(213) 896-2640
Juan Páez, Office Manager jpaez@paralosninos.org	(213) 896-2640
Ivania Lara, Administrative Assistant ilara@paralosninos.org	(213) 896-2640
Erica Garcia, Administrative Assistant ergarcia@paralosninos.org	(213) 896-2640
Drew Furedi, Superintendente & VP of Schools dfuredi@paralosninos.org	(213) 250-4800

Facultad			
Salón	Nombre	Tema	Grado
215	Margarita Alvarado	Social Science/ELA	6th
216	Jesse Balderas	Science/Math	6th
205	Esmeralda Sandoval	Science/Math	6th
214	Wendy Mejia	Social Science/ELA	6th
314	William Omer	Social Science/ELA	7th
313	Sandy Santillan	Social Science/ELA	7th
304	Jessica Kinzy	Science/Math	7th
303	Celia Gonzalez	Science/Math	7th
302	Matthew Schultz	Math	8th
301	Elmer Membreño	Social Science	8th
204	Jonathan Mundy	Science	8th
315	David Quincy	English	8th
Boy's Gym	Alejandro Cervantes	Physical Education	6th-8th
Girl's Gym	Emily Wiley	Physical Education	6th-8th
Lupita Martinez,	School Counselor	(213) 896-2640	
Pamela Brintrup, School Psychologist		(213) 896-2640	
Nancy Santillan, RSP Teacher		(213) 896-2640	
Irma Salgado, R		(213) 896-2640	
Arlene Martinez, Speech Therapist		(213) 896-2640	
Lionel Chavez, Family Advocate		(213) 896-2640	
Sandra Serrano, Library Specialist		(213) 896-2640	

### **Instructional Aides**

Francisco Carrillo Ivan Hernandez Jonathan Barrera Yesenia Hernandez Cesar Gutierrez

### **Supervision Aides**

Luz Amador Marcela Roche Jocelyn Ornelas

## Afer-School Program:

Cecilia Hernandez – Directora del programa Moises Carrillo – Supervisor del Predio Escolar (213) 239-6605 x272 (213) 896-2640